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I. statement

1. On October 4, 2005, Staff of the Colorado Public Utilities Commission (Staff) Issued Civil Penalty Assessment Notice (CPAN) No. 76648 (Hearings exhibit No. 3) charging Transexpress, Inc. (Respondent), with four violations contrary to 4 Code of Colorado Regulations (CCR) 723-15-2.1 and 49 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 396.3(b)(2) (No Maintenance Plan) alleged to have occurred on August 1, 2005.  Each violation carries a $200 penalty for a total penalty of $800.

2. CPAN No. 76648 was served on Respondent on or about October 6, 2005. (Hearings exhibit No. 4)

3. On October 26, 2005, the Assistant Attorney General entered her appearance on behalf of Staff.

4. On November 14, 2005, counsel for Respondent entered his appearance on behalf of Respondent.

5. The case was heard as scheduled on November 29, 2005.  Testimony was received from witnesses and Exhibit Nos. 1 through 4, 5A, 5B, 5C, 5D, 5E, and 5F were marked for identification and admitted into evidence.  At the conclusion of the case, the matter was taken under advisement.

6. Pursuant to § 40-6-109, C. R.S., the record and exhibits of the proceeding together with a written recommended decision are transmitted to the Commission.

II. findings of fact and conclusions of law

7. Staff Compliance Investigator Ted M. Barrett testified that he conducted an audit of Respondent’s operation.  He stated that on September 29, 2005, he went to Respondent’s premises to conduct a safety and compliance review of Respondent’s operations.

8. Mr. Barrett testified that the September, 2005 review was not the first review conducted by Staff.  He stated that on July 26, 2002, Staff performed a compliance review of Respondent’s operations.  During the course of this review, Staff found various violations as noted on Staff’s Safety and Compliance Review. (Hearings exhibit No.1)   Among the violations found, were vehicle maintenance violations and failure to have a maintenance plan.  These violations were noted in writing in Exhibit No. 1 which was given to Respondent along with Staff’s recommendations for corrective action.  Some of the violations found in the 2002 review are the same as found in a subsequent review by Staff which resulted in the issuance of CPAN No. 76648.

9. On September 29, 2005, Mr. Barrett went to Respondent’s premises to perform a safety and compliance review.  Mr. Barrett found a number of violations which he listed on page 2 of Hearings exhibit No. 2.  He determined that Respondent did not have a maintenance plan for all of the vehicles used by Respondent in serving the public.

10. Based on his investigation, Mr. Barrett issued CPAN No. 76648, charging Respondent with four violations contrary to Rule 4 CCR 723-15-2.1 and 49 CFR 396.3(b)(2), failing to maintain a maintenance plan for all of the vehicles used by Respondent in serving the public.

11. During the course of Mr. Barrett’s review, Mr. Gary Ruvins, Manager of Operations for Respondent met with Mr. Barrett.  Mr. Ruvins gave Mr. Barrett maintenance records for the vehicles used by Respondent in its operations.  These records were introduced into evidence as Exhibit Nos. 5A through 5F.  The records indicate that maintenance of the vehicles was performed on the vehicles.  The records are in the form of receipts for services performed, enclosed in six separate folders.  The records are in no particular order.  

12. Mr. Ruvins testified that at the time of Mr. Barrett’s visit on September 29, 2005, he showed Mr. Barrett the records for the vehicles contained in Exhibit Nos. 5A through 5F.  He explained that these records include receipts and a maintenance report that shows that maintenance was performed.  He also stated that the six folders containing the maintenance records were started after the compliance visit by Mr. Barrett in 2002.  Mr. Ruvins believes that the records are equivalent to a “maintenance plan”.

13. Rule 4 CCR 723-15-2.1 incorporates by reference the regulations published in Title 21, 49 CFR § 1308.11 and Title 49, 49 CFR, Parts 40, 382, 383, 390, 391, 392, 393, 395, 396, and 399.  Rule 49 CFR 396.3(b)(2) requires motor carriers to have a maintenance plan for each of its vehicles used in serving the public.

14. During the course of the 2002 Safety and Compliance Investigation and the 2005 Safety and Compliance Investigation, Mr. Barrett advised Respondent of its obligation to have a maintenance plan.  Mr. Barrett advised respondent to “Establish a systematic maintenance records program for all vehicles.  Maintain a complete file for each subject vehicle; identify the vehicle; record all repair, maintenance and inspection operations performed; develop and employ a preventative maintenance schedule.”  Page no. 4 of Hearings Exhibit No. 1; page no. 5 of Hearings Exhibit No. 2.

15. The maintenance records consisting of scattered receipts contained in folders for each vehicle (Hearings Exhibit Nos. 5A through 5F) does not comply with the requirements of the Commission’s rules cited above which incorporates by reference 49 CFR 396.3(b)(2), and Mr. Barrett’s recommendation.  In addition, the maintenance report sheets for the vehicles that contain summaries of maintenance performed were completed after Mr. Barrett’s inspection on September 29, 2005.

16. Although Respondent performed maintenance of its vehicles as documented by the receipts contained in the folders, Respondent failed to comply with the requirements of the rules even though Respondent was advised by Mr. Barrett in 2002 that the Commission required a maintenance plan.

17. It is found and concluded that Staff has met its burden to establish that Respondent violated Rule 4 CCR 723-15-2.1 and 49 CFR 396.3(b)(2) as cited in CPAN No. 76648 and is assessed a civil penalty in the total amount of $800. 

18. Pursuant to § 40-6-109(2), C.R.S., it is recommended the Commission enter the following order.

III. ORDER

A. The Commission Orders That:

1. Transexpress, Inc., is found to be in violation of Rule 4 Code of Colorado Regulations 723-15-2.1 and 49 Code of Federal Regulations 396.3(b)(2) by failing to maintain a maintenance plan for its vehicles. Transexpress, Inc. is assessed a civil penalty of $200 each for the four violations as charged in Civil Penalty Assessment No. 76648.

2. Transexpress, Inc., shall within 30 days of the effective date of this Recommended Decision, pay to the Colorado Public Utilities Commission the total penalty in the amount of $800.

3. This Recommended Decision shall be effective on the day it becomes the Decision of the Commission, if that is the case, and is entered as of the date above.  

4. As provided by § 40-6-109, C.R.S., copies of this Recommended Decision shall be served upon the parties, who may file exceptions to it.  

If no exceptions are filed within 20 days after service or within any extended period of time authorized, or unless the decision is stayed by the Commission upon its own motion, the recommended decision shall become the decision of the Commission and subject to the provisions of § 40-6-114, C.R.S.

If a party seeks to amend, modify, annul, or reverse basic findings of fact in its exceptions, that party must request and pay for a transcript to be filed, or the parties may stipulate to portions of the transcript according to the procedure stated in § 40-6-113, C.R.S.  If no transcript or stipulation is filed, the Commission is bound by the facts set out by the administrative law judge and the parties cannot challenge these facts.  This will limit what the Commission can review if exceptions are filed.

5. If exceptions to this Decision are filed, they shall not exceed 30 pages in length, unless the Commission for good cause shown permits this limit to be exceeded.
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Doug Dean, 
Director
	THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF COLORADO


WILLIAM J. FRITZEL
________________________________

Administrative Law Judge
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